
 
Request for Proposal 

Administration of Load Curtailment in New York for Town of Queensbury Water Filtration Plant 
 

     Friday, March 23, 2018 
 
Town of Queensbury is requesting proposals for the administration of the NYISO demand response 
program via load curtailment by: 
 
RFP Due Date:  April 4, 2018 
 
Contract Start:   May 1st, 2018 
 
Contract End:    April 30th, 2021 
 
Location:        823 Corinth Rd. Queensbury, National Grid Account # 5124036107, Meter # 05022683 
 
Services:          Town of Queensbury requests the following services: 

- Administer all aspects of Town of Queensbury’s Water Filtration Plant load 
curtailment (certification, measurement & verification, settlement, etc.) with the 
NYISO. 

- Develop a Reduction Action Plan to maximize the value of sold capacity, subject to 
Town of Queensbury’s approval. 

- Provide prompt communication of all alerts, event calls, and other related information. 
 
Proposals:       Please address the following questions in order: 

 
Article 1: Fee structure/Revenue sharing model 
A.) What % of the NYISO payment for capacity will be delivered to the Town of Queensbury? 
B.) What % of the NYISO “energy” payment for load shed during an actual emergency event will 

be delivered to Town of Queensbury? 
 

Article 2: Penalty structure for under or nonperformance 
A.) Describe in detail the implications under the proposed contract if the Town of Queensbury’s  

actual electrical curtailment is less than the contracted quantity? 
1. For the purpose of this example, please use a registration level of 1,000kW with a 

performance of 500kW. 
 

Article 3: Contract Terms and Settlement Procedure 
A.) Please provide a copy of your proposed agreement to the Town of Queensbury. 
B.) Does the provider propose to distribute settlements on a monthly, quarterly or annual basis? 
C.) Are provider’s contract terms flexible in terms of any changes the Town of Queensbury would 

like to propose? 
 

Article 4: Additional services provided and associated fees.  
A.) What is the provider’s protocol for metering eligible facilities?  

a. Are there any costs involved? 
B.) Does the provider have a means to provide contributor access to interval meter data? If so, is 

there a cost for this service? 
1. Please provide the Town of Queensbury with a demo login so we can evaluate your 

platform. 
 

Article 5: New York Demand Response 
A.) Please provide documentation that provider is in fact an approved demand response 

aggregator in the NYISO SCR program. 
B.) How long has provider offered the NYISO SCR program? 
C.) Does provider outsource any aspect of your services and program to a 3rd party? This 

includes any engineering, metering installation, energy monitoring platform, customer service, 
etc. If so, please provide us with information on the service and company provider is 
outsourcing work to. 



D.) Please provide brief biographies of your New York Demand Response team that would be 
assigned to the Town of Queensbury’s account if provider is awarded a contract. 

E.) Does provider require a test prior to the start of a capability period? 
 

Article 6: Company Credentials 
A.) Provide a brief overview of your company detailing: 

1. Number of years in business. 
2. Number of employees. 
3. Office locations including Headquarters. 
4. MWs of curtailable load under contract (please do not double count a MW that 

participates in both an emergency and price program) across North America. 
a. How many MW were acquired through acquisitions of 3rd party 

companies/vendors? 
5. Your financial position: Specifically include whether you are profitable and cash-flow 

positive. Describe your profitability over the past five (5) years. 
6. Any and all lawsuits currently pending against your company or any of its principals. 
7. Are you accredited with the Better Business Bureau (BBB)? 

a. What is your rating with the Better Business Bureau (BBB)? 
b. Proof of your current rating with the Better Business Bureau (BBB). 

 
Article 7: New York Credentials 
A.) How many companies participate in your demand response program in NY? 
B.) Do you have an office in NY? 

a. Please provide address of office location(s). 
 

Technical questions shall be submitted in writing to Christopher Harrington, Water Superintendent @ 
chrish@queensbury.net 
 

Proposals may be emailed to:   
 
Contact: Joanne Watkins, Purchasing Agent 

   joannew@queensbury.net 
 
Town of Queensbury retains the right at its sole discretion to reject any or all proposals. 


